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SOFTWARE DEVELOPMENT

Q) amberinnovations

Connecting The Dots

LETS DO THIS TOGETHER

LETS WORK TOGETHER

HIRE RESOURCES

Customize your technology team
for your digitization projects

» Reduce Technology Gaps and
Staff Turnover

» Increase Staff Retention and
Productivity

» Access World Class Developers
for Immediate Onboarding
with Full Stack Capabilities

WHAT WE DO

LETS BUILD TOGETHER

SOFTWARE DEVELOPMENT

Developing futureproof and
fit-for-purpose applications

» Business Analysis
» Requirement Gathering

Ease of use and Feature rich
UI/UX (Moblie/Web)

APl & System Integrations

Concept to code for Web,
Mobile and Business
Applications (inc ERP, CRM,
Time & Attendance etc)

Data Warehouse

Headquartered in Jamaica and part of the O amber group of companies

www.myambergroup.com

LETS SECURE TOGETHER

CYBER SECURITY

Where cybersecurity meets
application development

» Application Specific
Security as a Service
» Penetration Testing

» Vulnerability Scans

» Remediation Reports
and Work

WE’'RE HERE TO HELP
Email: ailsales@myambergroup.com
OMEE@ orcall us on +18766167661
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The Private Sector Organisation of
Jamaica (PSQO3J) was established in
1976. It is a national organisation of
private sector associations, companies
and individuals working together
to promote a competitive and
productive private sector.

The organisation seeks to influence
national policy issues of a political,
social, or economic nature. The
Executive Committee, under guidance
from the Council, leads this process
by promoting discussions with the
country’'s Government, political
directorate and the Opposition. The
Organisation is also in close and
constant contact with the major
multi-lateral and bi-lateral agencies.
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OUR MISSION

To effectively advocate for the
implementation of public policy that
enables strong, sustainable private
sector-led economic growth and

OUR VISION development.

We are the unifying voice of the private
sector working in partnership with the
public sector and civil society to achieve
Vision 2030 for Jamaica.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN: That the 34th Annual General Meeting of the Members of
The Private Sector Organisation of Jamaica (PSOJ) will be held at the Jamaica Pegasus
Hotel and Hybrid via Microsoft Teams on Tuesday, December 6, 2022 commencing
3:00 p.m.,, for the purposes of considering and if thought fit, passing the following
resolutions, namely:

AS ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS:
1. To Adopt the Reports of the President and the Executive Committee

Resolution No.1That the Reports of the President and the Executive Committee for
the year ended 31, December 2021 be and are hereby adopted.

2. To Adopt the Audited Financial Statements of Accounts etc.

Resolution No. 2 That the Audited Financial Statements of Accounts for the PSOJ
and the Reports of the Auditors for the year ended 31, December 2021 be and are
hereby adopted.

3. To Elect Members of the Council In accordance with Article lll, Clauses 5and 6
of the Organisation’s Articles of Incorporation, the following members of the Coun-
cil (being (i) one-half of the members of the Council in each of the 4 categories of
membership of the Organisation as indicated, and (ii) being the members in each
such category who have been longest in office since their last election) retire by
rotation and being eligible to offer themselves for re-election.

Members of the Organisation should note that they are only eligible to vote for
proposed members of the Council who fall in the same category of membership
which they hold in the Organisation.

a. Membership Category — Organisations and Associations
Article 1, Clause 3 (a):

“Organisations, associations, groups or bodies whether national, regional or parish
representative of any service, field or interests within the Private Sector or any part
thereof. This category shall
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not include companies or firms primarily doing business or trading, nor shall this
category include organisations, associations, groups and bodies which in the
opinion of the Committee are not effectively representative of their particular field
at an essentially national, regional or parish level...".

1. Business Processing Industry Association of Jamaica
2. Council of Voluntary Social Service

3. Incorporated Masterbuilders’ Association of Jamaica
4. Institute of Chartered Accountants of Jamaica

5. Jamaica Cooperative Credit Union League

6. Jamaica Customer Service Association

7.Jamaica Developers Association

8. Medical Association of Jamaica

9. The MSME Alliance

10. Small Business Association of Jamaica

11. Sugar Manufacturing Corporation of Jamaica

12. United Way of Jamaica

Resolution No. 3a (to be voted on only by Members falling in this category of
membership of the Organisation)

That the above retiring members of the Council be and are hereby elected to serve
as members of the Council in the category indicated.

b. Membership Category — Individuals
Article 1, Clause 3 (b):

“Individuals, whether male or female, who shall have attained the age of 18 years
as at the date of application for membership and who are resident in Jamaica and
who are by principal occupation members of the Private Sector, provided, however,
that no person is eligible for individual membership who is a sole proprietor, con-
trolling partner or controlling shareholder of a business, firm, company or other
enterprise conducted for profit, unless such enterprise is also a Member.” [of the
Organisation]

1. Christopher Reckord
2. Jason Henzell
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Resolution No. 3b (to be voted on only by Members falling in this category of
membership of the Organisation)

That the above retiring members of the Council be and are hereby elected to serve
as members of the Council in the category

indicated.

c. Membership Category — Companies etc.

Article 1, Clause 3 (c):

“Companies, firms, partnerships, bodies or other groups, part of the Private Sector
not falling within category (a) above, whose registered or main office is in Jamaica
or (if abroad) who have an office and a substantial operation in Jamaica”.

1. Bank of Nova Scotia Jamaica Limited

2. CitiBank

3. Continental Baking Company Limited
4. Chukka Caribbean Adventures Limited
5. Grace Kennedy Ltd

6. Jamaica Money Market Brokers Limited
7.Jamaica Producers Group Limited

8. Sagicor Group Jamaica Limited

9. WISYNCO Group Limited

10. Red Stripe Company Limited

Resolution No. 3c (to be voted on only by Members falling in this category of
membership of the Organisation)

That the above retiring members of the Council be and are hereby elected to serve
as members of the Council in the category indicated.

d. Membership Category — Associate Overseas Members

Article 1, Clause 3 (d):

“Associate Overseas members being persons, companies, firms, partnerships, asso-
ciations, organisations or other groups, not resident in Jamaica, part of the Private
Sector of their respective country, whose applications are approved by the Com-
mittee in its discretion.”
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Resolution No. 3d (to be voted on only by Members falling in this category of
membership of the Organisation)

That the above retiring members of the Council be and are hereby elected to serve
as members of the Council in the category indicated.

4. To Re-appoint an Auditor for the Ensuing Year.
Resolution 4a:

That Star Dot Star Ltd/Ventry Foo Chartered Accountant having agreed to continue
in office as Auditors, be and are hereby reappointed Auditors for the Company to
hold office until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting at a remunera-
tion to be fixed by the Executive Committee.

5. To Consider any Other Business that may Appropriately be Transacted at an
Annual General Meeting.

BY ORDER OF THE COUNCIL

Eva Lewis

HONORARY SECRETARY
November 1, 2022

39 Hope Road

Kingston 10

IMPORTANT NOTICES FOR MEMBERS

Members who shall be an organisation or a group of two or more individuals,
companies, firms, establishments or bodies shall at least seventy-two hours before
the commencement of the Annual General Meeting, that is, by 4:00 p.m. on Friday,
December 2, 2022, give to the Honorary Secretary or other person acting on her
behalf for this purpose written notice of the name and address of one person who
shall have been nominated to attend the meeting on the member’'s behalf, and
such person shall have the voting rights and any other rights and privileges of the
member he represents.
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Any person entitled to attend a meeting of the Organisation may attend such
meeting and vote thereat, whether on a show of hands or by poll, by proxy. A proxy
need not be a Member, and a form of proxy is enclosed with this Notice for your

convenience. This form should be completed and deposited with the Honorary

Secretary at 39 Hope Road, Kingston 10, not less than 48 hours before the meeting.
The proxy form should bear stamp duty of $100.00 before being signed. The stamp
duty may be paid by adhesive stamps and cancelled by the person signing the

Proxy.

A Member who is in arrears with his subscription shall not be entitled to vote at any
general meeting of the Organisation.

Members are reminded of the following provisions of Article Ill, Clause 2: “Candi-
dates for election to the Council shall be nominated by a Member in good standing
and seconded by another Member in good standing. A nominated candidate must
be a Member in good standing or must represent an association, company, firm
or other non-individual Member in good standing. Nominations duly signed by
the proposer and the seconder shall be delivered to the Honorary Secretary of the
Organisation at least fourteen (14) days before the date of the meeting. Nomina-
tions will not be permitted from the floor.” Accordingly, nominations for Members
of Council must be delivered to the Honorary Secretary of the Organisation by 4:00
p.m. Wednesday, November 23, 2022.
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Council Members 2021 - 2022

Corporate:

Guardsman Group Ltd.

ICD Holdings Group Limited

J. Wray and Nephew Ltd.

Digicel Jamaica Limited

Jamaica National Building Society

PanJam Investment Limited

Radio Jamaica Limited (RIR/Gleaner Group)
Seprod Group of Companies

Victoria Mutual Building Society

Associations:

Insurance Association of Jamaica

Institute of Internal Auditors

Jamaica Bankers Association

Jamaica Computer Society

Jamaica Employers Federation

Jamaica Gasoline and Retailers Association
Jamaica Hotel and Tourist Association
Jamaica Insurance Brokers

Business Process Outsourcing

Jamaica Securities Dealers Association
The Human Resource Management Association of Jamaica
Realtors Association of Jamaica

Shipping Association of Jamaica

Individuals:

Stephen Greig
Dr. Paris Lyew-Ayee Jr.
Janet Silvera
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President’s
Report

MR. KEITH DUNCAN
President

As the country’s leading umbrella
organisation representing private
sector bodies, associations and
individuals in Jamaica, the work
of The Private Sector Organisation
Of Jamaica (PSQOJ), continues to be
impactful on matters relating to nation
building, social transformation, and
economic development.

In 2021, the Organisation was
challenged to reiterate its commitment
to sustainable national development,
as the country traversed its path to
recovery amidst the global turbulence
resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic.

In keeping with the mandate of Inclusive
and Equitable Growth through Advocacy
and Action, The PSOJ remained true to
its role in establishing partnerships that
supported the country’s fight against the
pandemic while establishing a path for
socio-economic growth and stability.

KEY

ACHIEVEMENTS
YEAR 2021

O

PRIVATE SECTOR VACCINE INITIATIVE

The Private Sector Vaccine Initiative (PSVI)
was established as a partnership among
the Government of Jamaica (GoJ) and
private sector groups: The Private Sector
Organisation of Jamaica (PSO3J), Jamaica
Chamber of Commerce (JCC) and the
Jamaica Manufacturers and Exporters
Association (JMEA). The PSVI was a targeted
support mechanism for the national
vaccination plan (NVP) led by the Ministry
of Health & Wellness (MoHW). Over 35,000
Jamaicans were vaccinated through PSVI
in 2021, as the team mobilised collective
resources and increased the velocity and
penetration of vaccinations in the country,
so Jamaica could return to a healthy and
productive society.
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WORKPLACE POLICY PROTOCOL FOR
VACCINATION

As companies sought to establish a safe
environment for its employees and customers,
The PSOJ leveraged the power of our network,
to develop a work place policy protocol for
businesses to assist companies in creating
safe workspaces.

This initiative served to underscore the role
of the Organisation in being a thought
leader and source for credible and insightful
information required by private sector entities
to bolster their operational capacity. The
information was made available through a
series of forums hosted by The PSOJ along
with the Protocol being made available on
the Organisation’s digital platforms.

E-COMMERCE NATIONAL DELIVERY
SOLUTION (ENDS)

In 2021, through a public-private partnership
with the Ministry of National Security, we
launched the E-commerce National Delivery
Solution (ENDS). The ENDS programme
allowed the quick-service industry to continue
operating during COVID-19 curfew hours. The
system was used by food-service companies,
such as restaurants, supermarkets, pharmacies,
and delivery providers. The program ran from
March 2021 and concluded in June 2021 with
the relaxing of the COVID-19 protocols by the
GoJ. During the programme, a software was
developed for vendors and users to use for
ease of business. The programme also saw
several training manuals developed for various
stakeholders interfacing with the software.
The programme had 774 companies/vendors
registering, 450 registered delivery riders and
8,379 employees.

ECONOMIC RECOVERY

As a country we have achieved macro-
economic stability and we see our economy
recovering nicely from the COVID-19 pandemic.

Unemployment has been recorded at its
lowest level in the country.This, however,
does not negate from the challenges being
faced by the private sector to source from
our domestic market skilled and even
unskilled labour to drive the investments
and growth in businesses which is likely
to put a ceiling on growth.

ADVOCACY

Advocating for the development of the
private sector and issues impacting national
development remains a fundamental tenet
of The PSQOJ, and this did not change in 2021.
We spoke clearly on issues pertaining to
good governance, public safety and order,
and the collective societal responsibility to
reduce the impact of COVID-19.

As we focused on matters of corruption,
crime and public order, low productivity
levels, digital transformation along with
the formalisation and development of
the MSME sector was the urgent need to
advance action on climate change and
sustainable environmental practices.

More importantly for us, nonetheless, was the
unwavering commitment and involvement
in being a part of the solution.

MOVING FORWARD

This commitment to a solution-oriented
and collaborative approach to our national
development issues has steered the modus
operandi of The PSOJ and continues to do
so in the strategic focus areas that we've
established.

HUMAN CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT

We now need to focus on our human capital
development so that we can meet the
needs of the labour market. Over 62% of our
workforce have no form of certification and
as a country the public and private sector



must focus on training and upskilling our
workforce to increase the available pool to
address the needs of our growing economy.
This will increase value added, productivity,
increase wages and the per capita income of
Jamaicans which is approximately US$5,000
among the lowest in the region. The PSOJ
looks forward to the work to be done by the
GoJ under the oversight of the Education-
Transformation Oversight Committee (E-TOCQC)
as it addresses the transformation of education
of our schools and our Vocational Institutions.
Economic growth in Jamaica is limited
by the shortfall of a trained and educated
workforce. We cannot begin to address the
low productivity, low standard of living and
social problems of our country without making
this shift in education. Itisimportant that we
address educational issues at the foundation
level to prepare our young people for higher
education and gain value-added skillsets
where everyone can earn higher incomes.

CONSENSUS ON CRIME

Private sector players, including The PSOJ
under the leadership of past President Howard
Mitchell, were very strident in this process,
which resulted in the establishment of the
Crime Monitoring Oversight Committee
(CMOC) in 2020, to which signatories included
nonpartisan stakeholders from the private
sector, civil society, academia, and the political
directorate. CMOC is the vehicle for developing
agreements and coordination around key
areas of intervention to mitigate crime. As
such, implementation is now critical. We want
to reinforce that a framework to achieve this
consensus already exists, but we acknowledge
that it can be deepened and expanded.

SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC
TRANSFORMATION

While The PSOJ continues to be a strident
partner in efforts to eliminate our spiralling
crime situation, we also acknowledge the
crucial role of the private sector as drivers of
social change. On this premise, Project STAR
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(Social Transformation and Renewal), a social
and economic development initiative, was
created. Launched in July 2022, Project STAR
was established by The PSOJ in partnership
with the Jamaica Constabulary Force (JCF)
and driven by communities to bring about
societal transformation through targeted
interventions in under-resourced areas of
Jamaica. Project STAR has come at a time
like no other. This initiative is a scalable effort
that solves the problems we see as a country;
it solves them at the community level while
unearthing the potential of our people. Through
the social and economic transformation
initiatives undertaken by Project STAR, the
outcome will be safer, secure, and more
prosperous communities which will translate
into a sustainable reduction in violence and
crime. Most importantly, it's owned and
driven by the people within communities.
Project STAR and all our partners work with
community members to implement their
ideas and solutions based on their identified
needs.

We are confident that this whole-of-society
approach will begin to yield the results needed
to move our communities and our country
forward. We are inspired and encouraged by the
support from our private sector stakeholders.
In 2020, we appealed for private sector support
through their corporate social responsibility
budgets. To date, we have secured more than
80% of the amount targeted from our large
corporate companies for the five-year span
of the project.

At the start of 2021, we set out on a mission
to facilitate inclusive and equitable growth
through advocacy and action —and we remain
committed to that mission and all we'll be
able to accomplish as a people through our
collective efforts.



Executive
Director’s
Report

Imega Breese McNab
Executive Director

In2021, The Private Sector Organisation
of Jamaica (PSOJ) focused on
strengthening the Secretariat,
delivering value to members, shaping
policy and supporting the national
COVID-19 response and recovery
initiatives. It was a celebratory year
as the Organisation reflected on its
45 years of commitment to private
sector-led growth, continuing to lead
discussions and assist companies
in Nnavigating one of our most
challenging periods.
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COVID -19 Response and Recovery
Projects

Over the two years of the pandemic,
the private sector, through the
PSOJ, contributed J$675M to several
initiatives. Of note, the Organisation
was awarded during the period for the
COVID-19 Response Fund and ENDS. In
addition to monetary contribution, the
Organisation, in partnership with other
private sector partners, developed the
COVID-19 Measures in the Workplace
Protocols and advocated for robust
PCR and antigen testing, expansion of
access points for vaccination, roll out of
community mobilization and targeted
communication strategies and phased
and controlled reopening of the school
and economy.

Private Sector through the PSOJ
has Contributed $675 Million to
COVID 19 Recovery Efforts

COVID-19
Private Sector
Ventilator Fund

COVID-19
Response Fund

E-Commerce
National
Delivery
Solution (ENDS)

Connect a Child

SAFESPOT Child
and Teen 24/7
helpline

UHWI COVID-19
48 Bed Field
Hospital

Private Sector
Vaccine
Initiative PSVI

N
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Policy Development

We ensured that we continued to
provide critical input on key pieces of
legislation and develop policy positions
in areas of national development and
growth. Of note, an Energy Policy Paper
was finalised and comments submitted
to the Joint Select Committees on the
NIDS Bill, The Sexual Harassment Act,
The Electricity Act and the Cybercrimes
Act. Additionally, through the Access
to Finance Facilitation Panel (AFFP), a
position paper was developed to guide
advocacy and stakeholder engagement
around Tiered, KYC and the Development
Bank of Jamaica (DBJ) agreed to increase
their claim’s cap from 20% to 30% in
line with recommmendations from The
PSOJ Team.

Strengthening the Secretariat

For the year, two key strategic focus
areas were membership retention
and engagement, and policy/position
development through the seven (7)
Standing Committees. As a result, two
new Units were established to realize
these objectives — The Membership
Relations and Programmes, Policy and
Research.

The Organisation continued to invest
in its digital tools and subscriptions,
operating virtually and improving our
website to facilitate e-payments.

Membership Engagement and Support

Members are at the core of what we
do, and it was important that we found
ways of connecting with our members
and delivering value. Given that we were
in the second year of the pandemic, we
continued to execute direct engagement
through emails, telephone, and virtual
events. We successfully engaged 550
members during the year and recruited
49 new members at a subscription
value 0f J$6,900,000. The Organisation
executed 14 webinars, of which 1765
persons participated. Eight of these
were held under the Road Map 2.0
Series. This was in addition to two (2)
Conferences and 74 episodes of COVID
CAST executed under the Access to
Finance Panel Project, which had 4.8M
views and 5800 participants, respectively.

550 A

Members Engaged

14

Webinars Executed

1765 A

Webinars 49 @
J$6.9M

Subscription Value
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Executive
Committee

Keith Duncan Jackie Sharp John Byles
President Vice President Vice President

Parris Lyew-Ayee  Adrain Stokes Eva Lewis
Vice President Vice President Honorary Secretary

Frank James Imega Breese McNab Vikram Dhiman
Vice President Executive Director Honorary Treasurer
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Executive
Committee

William Brown Septimus Blake Gloria Henry
(SAJ) (IBA) (GSAJ)

Donovan Wignall David Wan Clifton Reader
(MSME Alliance) (JEF) (IHTA)

Andrew Manning
(MAJ)




THE 28TH
INDUCTEE INTO
THE PSOJ HALL
OF FAME

HON. MICHAEL LEE-CHIN O3, LL.D.
(HON.)

The Private Sector Organisation of Jamaica
(PSQOJ) is proud to induct a titan of Jamaican
business into its Hall of Fame — the
brilliant, charismatic and inimitable
Michael Lee-Chin.
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As a visionary entrepreneur, Michael Lee-
Chin’s philosophy of ‘doing well by doing
good’ continues to transform companies
and communities. As a philanthropist, his
efforts have touched the lives of hundreds
of thousands. As a ‘son of the soil, he
is a shining example of extraordinary
success through passion, purpose and
perseverance.

From his humble roots, which he credits
for the confidence behind all his successes,
Michael has grown to become one of the
most successful businessmen in Jamaica
and Canada. His achievements include
being bestowed with the Order of Jamaica,
one of the country’s highest national
honours, for his significant contribution
to business and philanthropy. He was also
appointed to the Order of Ontario (Canada),
the province's highest civilian order, which
recognizes individuals whose exceptional
achievements have left a lasting legacy
in the province, in Canada, and beyond.
Several distinguished universities have
honoured Michael with Doctor of Laws
degrees, including: McMaster University,
University of Toronto, Northern Caribbean
University, Wilfrid Laurier University, the
University of the West Indies, and York
University. Notwithstanding these honours,
he counts being a father of five among
his top accomplishments.



Michael was born in Port Antonio, Jamaica,
in 1951. After high school, he worked on a
cruise ship and at an aluminium bauxite
plant before applying to universities in
Canada andthe U.S. He was accepted into
McMaster University's civil engineering
programme, but after the first year of
school, had no resources to pay for the
remainder of his education. He wrote to
then Prime Minister of Jamaica, Most
Hon. Hugh Shearer ON, OJ, to request a
scholarship. The Prime Minister provided
the scholarship and Michael went on to
complete his studies. Upon graduating,
Michael returned to Jamaica and worked
with the Government as a Civil Engineer,
prior to exploring a career in finance in
Canada.

His passion for serving clients and making
them wealthy, led him to codify the 5 laws
of wealth creation which has guided him
ever since.

In 1983, Michael borrowed CAD$500,000
and invested in Mackenzie Financial
Corporation stock. Four years later, the
stock had appreciated by 600 per cent.
Michael used the profits to make his
first acquisition — a small Ontario-based
investment firm called AIC Limited. Within
13 years, AlC's assets under management
grew from less than CAD$1 million to over
CADS$I15 billion. In 2002, AIC acquired a 75
per cent stake in National Commercial Bank
Jamaica Limited (NCBJ) from Jamaica’s
Financial Sector Adjustment Company
(FINSAC). Since that acquisition 20 years
ago, NCBJ has grown from strength
to strength, first becoming the largest
and most profitable financial institution
in Jamaica, and then becoming one of
the leading financial institutions in the
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English-speaking Caribbean. Today, the
NCB Financial Group has a presence in
over 21 territories and provides a wide
array of financial products and services
through its holdings in NCBJ, TFOB (2021)
Limited, Clarien Group Limited and
Guardian Holdings Limited.

The scholarship granted to Michael Lee-
Chin to pursue his tertiary studies, has
indeed paid dividends for Jamaica. The
NCB Financial Group has created wealth
for its shareholders based on its strong
stock market performance over time,
and continues to be a primary corporate
contributor to Jamaica's tax revenue base.
Through the N.C.B. Foundation, Michael
has demonstrated his mantra “doing
well by doing good”. Since its inception
in 2003, the Foundation has donated
J%$2.4 billion to philanthropic causes,
benefiting over 500,000 Jamaicans. The
majority of those donations have been
focused on education, related to Michael’s
dream of seeing all Jamaican children
having an opportunity to pursue tertiary
education. Beyond its contributions to
education, the N.C.B. Foundation has
also contributed to worthwhile initiatives
such as the restoration of the Holy Trinity
Cathedral, a cause that has been dear to
Michael's heart, and life-saving equipment
purchases for the University Hospital of
the West Indies.

In 2016, Michael took hiscommitment to
Jamaica a step further by accepting the
Prime Minister's appointment to chair
Jamaica’'s Economic Growth Council.

Today, Michael is the President and
Chairman of Portland Holdings Inc., a
privately held investment company that
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manages public and private equity, and has an ownership interest in a collection of
diversified businesses operating in sectors that include financial services, tourism,
agriculture, insurance, energy and targeted radionunclide therapy, with its origins
dating back to 1987.

In addition to his role as Chairman of NCB Financial Group Limited, Michael sits on
various boards in Canada, Germany and throughout the Caribbean including the
boards of National Commercial Bank Jamaica Limited and Guardian Holdings Limited.

Even though the best may still be yet to come, Michael has already indelibly changed
the landscape around him. His lasting legacy was undoubtedly shaped by the values
instilled and the lessons learned from the land of his birth. He continues to lead by
being a living example of his own words: “Our behaviour today will be our history
tomorrow. Make sure it's well written.”

As Hon. Michael Lee-Chin, O.J,, LL.D (Hon.) is inducted into the PSOJ Hall of Fame
tonight, we can all reflect on his three-part recipe for a fulfilled life: doing well, doing
good for society and living a life of passion. This approach has brought Michael
tremendous professional success, but its true significance can be seen in the countless
lives that have been transformed, the communities that have been strengthened
as a result and a nation that has been made better for it. We celebrate Michael's
numerous accomplishments and express our sincere appreciation for his remarkable
leadership, vision and contribution to Jamaica.

October 2022
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The PSOJ 28th Hall of Fame Inductee President of the PSOJ Keith Duncan
Michael Lee-Chin arriving on the blue posing for a picture with his wife
carpet with his wife, Sonya Hamilton Wendy Duncan, Michael Lee-Chin and
Lee-Chin. Sonya Hamilton.

5
Michael Lee-Chin is all smiles with his PSOJ President Keith Dupcan takes a
. St ian L ee-Chin. moment to greet PSOJ Vice President
Jackie Sharp.

Three the hard way! Michael Lee-Chin,
Kenny Benjamin and Keith Duncan are
picture-perfect.
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Michael Lee-Chin greeting Senator the President of the PSOJ Keith Duncan
Hon. Aubyn Hill, Minister of Industry, with 2019 Hall of Fame Inductee Thalia
Investment & Commerce. Lyn, Hugh Hart and Adrian Lee-Chin.

J. Wray & Nephew'’s Managing Director Hugh Hart reading the MLC Citation
Jean-Philippe Beyer presenting before the official presentation.
Michael Lee-Chin with an Appleton

Estate 21-Year-Old Nassau Valley Cask

sighed bottle by Master Blender Dr Joy

Spence.
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CONGRATULATIONS
Michael Lee-Chin OJ, OONT

2022 PSOJ Hall of Fame Inductee

Titan of Jamaican business,
philanthropist, Chairman of the NCB
Financial Group, and 28th inductee
in the Private Sector of Jamaica
Hall of Fame - the inimitable
Michael Lee-Chin.

Michael has indelibly changed
the landscape around him.
His lasting legacy will be the
result of the values instilled
and the lessons learned
from the land of his birth.
He continues to lead by
being a living example
of his own words:

“Our behaviour

today will be our

history tomorrow.

Make sure it’s well
written.”

NCS

FINANCIAL GROUP
LIMITED

Empowering People. Unlocking Dreams. Building Communities
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Sandra Glasgow
Committee Chair

Crime Stop Jamaica, under the directorship
of The Private Sector Organisation of
Jamaica (PSOJ), embarked on a multi-
media, multi-faceted campaign in 2021
where high-level strategies included
tackling acts of crime through the
reclamation of spaces within communities,
repositioning Crime Stop and the Jamaica
Constabulary Force as sources of support
and trust and the reimagination and
redefinition of what it means to be a good
citizen. The ‘Stand Up for Our Country’
campaign was executed via mainstream
media, social media and out of home
(OOH) advertising. It also included the
execution of a mural in the Hannah Town
community, depicting the message of
trust and support among community
members and the police.

The public reach and reaction were
remarkable from the collateral created
— television commmercials, social media
videos and static images, and radio and
press advertisements. Over 120 television
placements, 520 radio placements, 22

press ads, 3 OOH advertisements, over
3.75M reach on social media, and several
media interviews. The ‘Stand Up for Our
Country’ Campaign not only reintroduced
the Crime Stop Jamaica programme as an
avenue to anonymously share information
on all criminal activities; it also resonated
with citizens who related to the call for
action to stand against crime and violence
in their community.

The full execution of the campaign would
not have been possible without the support
of our Campaign and Corporate Sponsors
and the partnership of the Jamaica
Constabulary Force. ‘Stand Up for Our
Country’ campaign was sponsored by
the National Commercial Bank, Hawkeye
Electronic Security Limited, Sterling
Asset Management Limited, Ministry of
National Security, Unicomer Jamaica,
GraceKenney Limited, Jamaica Money
Market Brokers, ICD Group, National
Rums of Jamaica, Victoria Mutual Group
and PanJam Investment Limited.

Statistics

Crime Stop received 685 tips in 2021,
garnering a success rate of 1in 8 (1 success
for every 8 first tips received). The majority
of tips received were regarding illegal
firearms and ammunition (192), followed
by gunmen (169) and wanted persons (46).




Among successes for the year, there were
67 arrests (a 34% increase compared
to 2020), the majority of which were
for possession of illegal firearms and
ammunition (23) and possession of drugs
(14). Additionally, 2021's successes included
the seizure of 36 illegal firearms and 582
rounds of ammunition. The total value
of the property recovered during 2021
totalled $5,246,172, whereas $12,691,236
worth of drugs were seized/destroyed.
These successes led to a total of $5,680,000
paid in rewards.

Funding

The National Commercial Bank (NCB)
Financial Group continued its support
of the Crime Stop Jamaica programme,
with the agreement covering August
2021 - July 2022. Notwithstanding, four
additional Corporate Sponsors were
onboarded in 2021, each with a three-year
term of January 2021 to December 2023;
they are Sterling Asset Management
Limited, J. Wray & Nephew Limited,
Hawkeye Electronic Security Limited, and
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GraceKennedy Limited. The Board
of Directors and staff heartily thank
these organisations for their support.

Additional funding was also received
through interest earned on the
organisation’s investment fund and
money raised through the partnership
with BGLC ($1M), which is now in its
sixth year. The media and allied services
continued to play a crucial role in the
Crime Stop Jamaica programme by
donating all time, space, and services
free of cost.
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Members

Gail Moss-Solomon Stephen Greig

Tracy Campbell Gina Phillipps-Black
Keri-Gaye Brown Lorna Gooden
Donovan Wignal David Hall

Simone Pearson Twila-Mae Logan
Robert Hamilton Marlene Street Forrest
Anna Harry Julie Thompson-James
Kecia Taylor Roxanne Miller
Gabrielle Grant Barbara Alexander

Melanie Gilchrist

Camille Facey
Committee Chair

The Committee lost its founding Chairperson with the untimely passing of Miss Greta
Bogues in February 2021. Mrs. Camille Facey was appointed Interim Chair and was
later confirmed in that position.

For 2021 the primary focus for the Committee was to finalise and launch the merged
PSOJ Corporate Governance Code, continue its governance advocacy and use
training as the primary tool to further enhance corporate governance awareness and
knowledge. Work also continued in supporting the public sector and the Corporate
Governance policies.

In 2021 the Committee met six (6) times for regular meetings while sub-committees
relating to the Corporate Governance Index, Corporate Governance Code, the Public
Bodies Corporate Governance Awards, Corporate Governance Training for MSMEs,
and the JSE/PSOJ Leadership Diploma Programme met regularly. During the year,
the Committee also saw one (1) change within its membership with the addition of
Mrs. Carolyn Bell-Wisdom representing the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Jamaica (ICAJ).
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During the review period, despite the Covid-19 pandemic, the Committee pursued
the following initiatives:

@ The Committee partnered with the Jamaica Stock Exchange (JSE) on the Corporate
Governance Leadership Diploma training programme for Directors, which was
conducted from February to May 2021. This programme provided training for another
fifteen (15) persons in corporate governance who are now a part of the eligible pool
of trained talent available for directorships. The listing of potential directors can be
found on both the JSE and PSOJ websites.

@ The Corporate Governance Implementation Oversight Committee (IOC), which consists
of both public and private sector individuals, continued to provide technical corporate
governance advice, quality control and to support the development of Corporate
Governance policies for the public sector. Some critical documents reviewed were; a
Code of Conduct and a revision of the Public Sector Board Performance Evaluation
Instruments. The Code of Conduct is still with the Ministry of Finance for review of
the amendments identified. The Corporate Social Responsibility framework and its
related guidelines were sent to the Minister of Finance & the Public Service, Hon.
Nigel Clarke for final review before submitting same to Cabinet.

@® The new regulations for the Nomination, Selection and Appointment of Directors of
Public Bodies were passed in December 2021.

@® The Jamaica Stock Exchange (JSE) continued utilising the Corporate Governance
Index (CGl) to enhance positive corporate governance practices for companies listed
on both the main and junior stock exchanges. The Corporate Governance Index
Review Committee, another sub-committee of the PSOJ CG Committee, assists the
JSE in providing an independent review of annual Corporate Governance Index scores.
Based on the 2021 review, there has been a positive increase in corporate governance
practices for listed companies. Eighty-eight (88) companies were reviewed during
this period, which augurs well for the growth, development, and transparency of
listed companies.

@ For the fourteenth year in a row, the PSOJ sponsored the 2021 PSOJ/JSE Corporate
Governance Awards. NCB Financial Group Limited and Grace Kennedy Limited were
the winners in the Main market, with Supreme Ventures Limited as the 2nd runner-
up. In relation to the Junior market, Honey Bun was named the winner, with Lasco
Financial Services as the Ist runner-up and Lasco Distributors Limited as the 2nd
runner-up.
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@® The review of the PSOJ Main Code continued. The PSOJ Corporate Governance Main
and MSME Codes were merged into one Code with different sections applicable
to Family-Owned Businesses and Non-profit Organisations. This comprehensive
Corporate Governance Code was completed by December 2021. This Code is expected
to be launched in February 2022 and will be supported by an updated Toolkit and
Handbook.

The Committee continues to positively support the PSOJ Council on Corporate
Governance matters and endeavours to increase the awareness and implementation
of corporate governance practices by both private and public sector entities.

LEADING CHANGE
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. T INTRACTORS LIMITED
Buic Buiding a Nofion Anafistoof YAy VM GROUP

/ ICON PROI
EiNTcoMEX Do

INNOVATION. . Advantage % 4/ ,,,,,,,,,
INTEGRITY. / /

PASSION. Gustazos
EXCELLENCE. \ s "Jv;f;“y .
ICDGROUP.NET



PSOJ ANNUAL REPORT 2021

ENERGY
ENVIRONMENT &
CLIMATE CHANGE
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Members
Alain Carreau
Andre Gordon
Ava Tomlin

Bela Szabo
Carolyn Bell-Wisdom
Christina Chue
Chris Okonomah
David Barrett
Dr. Ava Maxam
David Arscott

Dwayne Russell

David Pijuan Mota
Earl Green

Joseph Williams
Krishna Desai
Levar Smith

Nigel Davy
Robert Holdsworth
Samuel Davis
Sean Hines
Suzanne Shaw
Wayne Archibald
Wesley Hughes

Eleanor Jones
Committee Chair

The PSOJ continued to promote public-private sector dialogue and partnership on
the three interrelated pillars of energy, environment, and climate change, which are
critical for sustainable development.

Energy

The high cost of energy remains an ongoing concern. Therefore, the EECC built on the
work undertaken in 2020 to continue to engage a wide cross-section of stakeholders
to finalize the Energy Pricing Position Paper in 2021. The paper highlights several
recommendations to transform the energy sector.

The National Energy Council (NEC) provides an avenue for the PSOJ to present its
views on policy required for energy security, efficiency, and sustainability. However,
no meetings were held during the year. As such, the PSOJ made representation for
the reconvening of the NEC meetings.

The Committee reviewed the Electricity Act 2015 and submitted its findings to the
Joint Select Committee of Parliament.

The Committee was re-engaged by USAID on the Public-Private Sector Alliance
(PPSA) and the Jamaica Energy Resilience Alliance (JERA). The Committee was
informed that the Cadmus Group had been engaged to serve as the Secretariat for
the PPSA. The PSOJ was asked to review the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)
and confirm its support for the initiative.



PSOJ ANNUAL REPORT 2021

&)

Environment

The Committee continued to participate in policy dialogue and initiatives to manage
the assets of the natural and built environment, paying particular attention to building
resilience to the impact of climate change, environment, disaster risk reduction,
waste management, and green investment.

National Tree Planting Initiative

The PSOJ committed to planting 500,000 trees as part of the National Tree Planting
Initiative (NTPI) in support of climate mitigation and the enhancement of forest
cover. PSOJ embarked on a marketing and public relations campaign to galvanize
support from members and the wider business community for the NTPI.

Building Resilience to Climate Change

The Committee continued to support
and promote the activities of the Climate
Change Division by bringing ongoing
awareness of the Green Bond Project
to the private sector. Additionally, the
Committee remained active, keeping
abreast of the global climate agenda by
participating in the Conference of the
Parties (COP26) virtual panel discussion
and the GCF's 4th annual Private
Investment for Climate Conference
(GPIC).

The national initiative for private sector
engagement in adaptation includes
efforts to improve the National Enabling
Environment by supporting operational
risk management, developing new
business opportunities, and attracting
and directing private infrastructure
investment. The PSOJ is represented
on the Steering Committee to oversee
the implementation of the Climate
Change National Adaptation Fund, a
major grant provided to Jamaica for
implementing climate change adaptation
activities related to coastal protection,
infrastructure for agriculture and food
security, and disaster risk reduction.

LEAP member Suzanne Shaw developed
a Climate-resilient Index. The Index is
intended to equip businesses to better
understand, identify, assess, and improve
their climate resilience to remain competitive
and profitable over the long term.

Green Investment

The PSOJ was represented on the Steering
Committee for the Green Investment Strategy
being developed through the National
Environment and Planning Agency (NEPA).

The PSOJ participated in a panel discussion
on Climate Change and Sustainable
Development at the Summit of the Americas
Dialogue 2021.

Other Activities

Presentations from organizations such as The
National Conservation Trust Fund (NCTFJ)
were facilitated to discuss opportunities for
collaboration to help fill the funding gap
for protected area management.
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Jeffrey Hall Jacqueline Sharp
Committee Co-Chair Committee Co-Chair

Members Stephanie Abrahams

Adrian Stokes Samuel Braithwaite

Duncan Stewart Saschelle Ricketts

. Tameka Walker Mowat
Jermaine Burrell

Keith Collister Natasha Richardson

Melanie Subratie

Nicholas Scott

In 2021, the Economic Policy Committee, co-chaired by Vice Presidents Jeffrey
Hall and Jackie Sharp, continued its focus on stimulating investments, improving
the ease of doing business and macro-economic conditions. Due to the ongoing
pandemic, the committee increased awareness and promoted dialogue on key areas
of competitiveness, investment opportunities and government-related economic
policy through the Road Map to Jamaica 2.0 Virtual Series and Press Statements.

Roadmap to Jamaica 2.0 Series

The committee held four (4) Roadmap to Jamaica 2.0 forums: “Increasing Jamaica's
Competitiveness Through Labour Reform, 2021/2022 Budget and Increasing Affordable
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Housing in Jamaica.” Emanating from these forums, the committee shared the
recommendations with the relevant stakeholders for consideration.

Policy Interest Rates

In response to the Bank of Jamaica (BoJ) first policy interest rate adjustment in October
from 0.5% to 1.50% per annum due to a 6.1% inflation in August which breached the
upper limit of the BOJ target range of 4.0%- 6.0%, the committee issued a Press
Statement. The Organisation voiced its concern regarding the tighter monetary
policy stance in the context of adverse macroeconomic conditions arising from the
COVID-19 pandemic, the government’s program to maintain a fiscal surplus, and
uncertainty among economic actors about short-term price changes due to supply
chain issues. The PSOJ encouraged the BOJ to utilize its unquestioned credibility
to lead a communication effort that would directly emphasize the transitory nature
of inflation for all economic actors. While expressly clarifying the specific economic
circumstances that would give rise to further changes in the policy rate and continuing
to assure the country that it stands ready to utilize effective policy tools to head off
embedded inflation should that need arise.

Investment

An exploratory meeting was held with the new Dominican Republic Ambassador
to Jamaica to discuss opportunities for export and investment and the hosting of a
DR/Jamaica Business Roundtable.



MEMBERSHIP
COMMITTEE
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Members
Kareen Cox Bert Tomlinson, Jr
Danielle Terrelonge Venice Irving

Almando Cox

Claudia Bermudez

The Membership Committee, under the chairmanship
of Yaneek Page, continued to devise strategies to
add value for members throughout the 2021 period.
Supported by the compliment of seasoned, insightful
business executives, the committee was diligent in
executing its mandate of delivering impactful and
engaging initiatives for members and prospects
alike. The work of the committee was reflected in its
support to the membership department in successfully
recruiting 49 new members and retaining over 90%
Yaneek Page of the organisation’'s membership as of December
Committee Chair 31, 2021.

Virtual Connect

All the primary activities of the committee remained in a virtual format for 2021. These
included committee meetings, all high-level consultancy meetings, forums, and
engagement sessions. The committee introduced the engagement sessions in April
2021 to reach multiple members at a given time, adding an element of networking
to the interaction. These sessions were robustly supported by the membership,
as they allowed them to share their challenges and accomplishments with PSOJ
leadership. Several of these events were led by the President, Vice-Presidents, and
the Executive Director. These engagement sessions continue to be integral to our
member engagement strategy.

Bridging the Digital Divide

With its launch in October 2020, the One Laptop or Tablet per Child Initiative, a Ministry
of Education and Youth-led Project to which the PSOJ is a key partner, remained
one of the priorities for the membership committee. The membership department
continued to procure laptops and tablets for donations to several schools across the
island during the pandemic. Through the PSQOJ, for 2021, there were approximately
4,200 devices procured and distributed, valued at more than $$125 million.



HUMAN CAPITAL
DEVELOPMENT
COMMITTEE
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Members Lisandra Rickards
Claudene Lofters Maya Walrond

Colleen Bancroft Melissa Anderson
Courtland Wilson Professor Dennis Gayle
Dr. Carolyn Hayle Renee Morrison
Dwayne Russell Sheree Martin

Jacqueline Coke Lloyd

Mariame Mclntosh
Robinson

Committee Chair

The Human Capital Development Committee (HCD) continued its mandate in 2021
under the stewardship of Mariame Mclntosh-Robinson. The Committee developed
effective strategies to advocate for and provide oversight for human capital-related
issues such as workforce development, child protection, and other development issues.
The Gender and Disability Affairs is a sub-committee of the HCD and advocates for
and advances issues affecting women, the disabled, and other marginalized groups
in corporate Jamaica.

The Child and Teen Helpline “Safe Spot”

The Committee was instrumental in the signing and implementation of a Memorandum
of Understanding (MOU) with the Office of the Children’'s Advocate (OCA) and the
United Nations Children’s Fund (UNICEF) Jamaica Country Office to establish the “Safe
Spot” child and teen helpline. The “Safe Spot” child and teen helpline was launched in
May as a multi-sectoral initiative to provide a 24-hour helpline for children adversely
affected by COVID-19.

Connect A Child

With the ongoing closure of schools due to the pandemic, the Committee continued
to facilitate access to devices for students through the Connect a Child initiative to
bridge the digital divide. In partnership with the Ministry of Education and Youth
(MOEY), Junior Achievement, National Education Trust and the Jamaica Social Stock
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Exchange, J$125,381,839 were raised, and 4,182 devices were procured.
Reopening of Schools

As we continued to grapple with the prevention and containment of the COVID-19
pandemic and the learning loss of children, the PSOJ commenced discussions
and established a working group in November with UNICEF and the Ministry of
Education and Youth (MOEY) to develop a Plan on the 3Rs Reopening, Recovery
and Resilience in schools.

Workforce Development

To fulfil its mandate of workforce development, the Committee continued to address
the skills gap issue currently affecting workforce development in Jamaica. As a result,
a request for proposal was developed to commission a national skills gap assessment
to achieve the following goals:

® To outline current and projected demand for skills that will be mapped to labour
market supply and key skills required to advance the local economy.

® To identify the skills gap for the internationally competitive industries as identified
by Vision 2030 and any emerging sectors with potential for growth and productivity.

@® To mapthe current programs offered by local tertiary institutions against the needs
of an internationally competitive industry and to identify any existing skill gaps.

® To help develop a user-friendly database or methods for robust data collection for
ongoing systematic skills gap measurement and data collection sustainability.

The Gender and Disability Affairs Sub-Committee

In 2021, the Gender and Disability Affairs Sub-Committee continued to focus on
strategies to address gender equality and disability issues. The subcommittee held
a virtual town hall session entitled “Ability to Access: A Conversation on Disability
and Inclusion”. The virtual town hall session was held to inform the government
and special needs stakeholders about the steps required to create a truly inclusive
workplace. The session also dissected the Disabilities Act and its accompanying
regulations.

Members Mareeca Brown-Bailey

Renee Morrison (Sub-Committee Chair) sandra McLeish

Andre Gordon Sandra Samuels

Deborah Newland Sandra Swaby

Gloria Goffe Shawneil Bailey-Gordon

Hixwell Douglas Thaylia Lyn
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Members Neil Lawrence
Aden Whittaker Stacey Hines
Amanda Collins Madden Trevor Forrest
Michele Marius Wayne Chen

Nadeen Mathews Blair

Christopher Reckord
Committee Chair

In 2021, PSOJ's Innovation and Digital Transformation Committee’s mandate
of identifying current and emerging digital practices to increase efficiency and
productivity in public and private sectors became even more relevant due to the
impact of COVID-19. The committee remained focused on its approach to working
assiduously at developing strategies, engaging stakeholders, and putting forward
recommendations to help transform Jamaica into a digital society.

The IDT Committee is pleased to report on its unwavering commitment to the three
key areas of focus which were pinpointed: digital literacy, eCommerce, and digital
payment, as well as the National ID System (NIDS). The committee continues to
develop effective strategies to improve Jamaica’s digital infrastructure and assess
and identify the current digital needs within Jamaica’s business sectors to improve
the country’s digital ecosystem.

E-commerce National Delivery Solution (ENDS)

The IDT Committee was instrumental in developing and implementing the ENDS
Programme in collaboration with the Ministry of National Security and other private
sector stakeholders. On March 6, 2021, ENDS was launched as an online registration
portal for compliant businesses to register online, enabling them to continue
operating during COVID-19 curfew hours. Food service companies, such as restaurants,
supermarkets, pharmacies, and other delivery services, used the system. Customers
benefited from the ENDS program as well, which was attributed to the fact that
COVID-19 regulations did not impede access to essential items and services.
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National Identification System (NIDS)

The Committee established the National Identification System Subcommittee with
the mission of identifying and utilizing opportunities to raise awareness about the
benefits of NIDS to the private sector. The Subcommittee briefed the Parliamentary
Joint Select Committee on the importance of NIDS in the digitalization process and the
ease of doing business in Jamaica. The Subcommittee also contributed to the creation
of recordings as part of the ongoing public communications campaign to educate
and raise awareness among Jamaicans allowing them to gain an understanding of
the Government NIDS initiative.

The Cybercrimes Act, 2015

The committee is also pleased to report that contributing to the legislative agenda
that directly impacts the development of the information technology (IT) sector
remains a key area of focus. A Subcommittee was formed to review the Cybercrimes
Act of 2015, and fruitful submissions were made to Parliament, which successfully
drew attention to areas for improvement in legislation that would enhance Jamaican
people's protection and broaden cyber-crimes.

Digital Policy Paper “Jamaica as a Digital Society”

One of the committee’s strategic goals for 2021 was to conceptualise and create
a PSOJ policy document titled “Jamaica as a Digital Society.” Members of the IDT
Committee took a participatory approach and hosted a membership consultation
session with key stakeholders such as the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise
(MSME) Alliance, Jamaica Manufacturers and Exporters Association (JMEA), Jamaica
Chamber of Cormmerce (JCC), and Jamaica Technology and Digital Alliance (JTDA),
among others, to gather a private sector perspective on what Jamaica should look
like as a digital society. The committee has completed draft one of the policy paper
and is working to advance its full completion in 2022.
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EXECUTIVE AND
ADMINISTRATIVE

DEPARTMENT

From left to right: Patrene Davis-
Walcott, Executive Administrator,
Imega Breese McNab, Executive
Director, Shanne Thomas,
Administrative Services Officer

&a8

MARKETING
DEPARTMENT

From left to right: Tashna-Toya
Edwards, Marketing & Communications
Associate, Andre Heslop, Marketing
Coordinator, Ammesha Brown,
Marketing & Public Relations Manager,
Kimecha Bailey, Events & Sponsorship
Officer

POLICY, PROGRAMMES
AND RESEARCH

DEPARTMENT

From left to right: Nicholas Johnson,
Programmes & Research Administrator,
Antonica Clarke, Business Support & Research
Officer, Georgette Bolton-Smith, Policy,
Programmes & Research Manager, Melanie
Dawkins, Policy & Research Analyst, Johnoi
Elliston, Project Coordinator
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FINANCE AND
OPERATIONS

DEPARTMENT

From left to right: James Sterling,
Caretaker/In-house Security, Miki
Coleman , Senior Accountant, Everton
Myers, Finance & Operations Manager,
Veneisha Simpson, Accounting Officer
(Receivables)

RESOURCE
DEPARTMENT

From left to right: Winsome Millen,
Office Attendant, Demoy Hayletts

HR Assistant, Britney Lothian, Intern,
Cheryl Neil-Barnes, Human Resource
Manager

MEMBERSHIP
DEPARTMENT

From left to right: Sashana Shryer,
Member Relations Officer, Anika
Jengelley, Member Relations Manager,
Zhane Rutherford, Membership
Services Officer
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PICTORIAL REVIEW

PSOJ President, Keith Duncan and his
wife, Wendy, made a J$1 million donation
towards the Connect A Child Initiative
in support of the Ministry Of Education,
Youth and Information’s One Laptop or
Tablet Per Child programme.

Joined by his son Zachary, laptops and
tablets were formally presented to the
students and Principals of Stony Hill
Primary and Infant School & Mannings
Hill Primmary School.

Hon. Fayval Williams and Hon Juliet
® Cuthbert were present for the handover.

CONSTANT
SPRING
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Dr The Honourable Christopher Tufton is
joined by Chair of Logistics and Operations
for Private Sector Vaccine Initiative (PSVI),
Peter Melhado and Chair of the Digicel
Foundation, Charmaine Daniels following
donation of equipment by the Foundation
towards improved delivery of vaccines
through the PSVI.

The PSQOJ, represented by President Keith
Duncan (left) and chair of PSVI Chris Zacca
joined other private sector associationsin
Jamaica -Jamaica Chamber of Commerce
(JCC) and the Jamaica Manufacturers and
Exporters Association (JMEA) in signing
an MoU with the Ministry of Health &
Wellness, represented by Minister of
Health Dr. the Hon. Christopher Tufton,
agreeing to support the Ministry’s efforts
to expedite vaccination of the Jamaican
populace as quickly and efficiently as
possible.
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PSOJ Executive Director Imega
Breese McNab joins Country
Representative of UNICEF
Jamaica, Mariko Kagoshima
and Children's Advocate Diahann
Gordon-Harrison for the launch
of the 24/7 Teen & Child HelpLine
SafeSpot.

uuuuu

The PSOJ partnered with our member New
Fortress Energy and the Forestry Department
of Jamaica for the Plant Up JA campaign where
members of the public received a free fruit tree
seedling for every one purchased at a Forestry

For the fourth consecutive year The
PSOJ partnered with the Ministry of
The PSOJ team was on location for the planting Finance and The Public Service for the
of trees at the Mitchell Town Primary School as Public Bodies Corporate Governance
part of our ongoing Tree Planting Campaign Awards. The National Health Fund (NHF)
aimed at planting 500,000 trees. walked away as the overall winners and
were presented with the inaugural
Greta Bogues Award For Excellence in

Department location.

Corporate Governance.
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In Memoriam

PSOJ MOURNS
THE PASSING OF
DR MARSHALL
HALL, CD, OJ
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Dr Hall was an astute businessman who served his country with distinction in both
academia and business. His passion for the growth and innovation of Jamaica’'s banana
industry has been exemplified throughout his 25 years as Group Manag’ng Director
of Jamaica Banana Producers Association Limited (now Jamaica Producers Group).
He is accredited with spearheading the resuscitation of the banana industry in St.
Mary and Jamaica after hurricane Allen in 1980 and again hurricane Gilbert in 1988.
His unwavering commitment to the development of Jamaica’s private and public
sectors is an exceptional legacy that has been etched in Jamaica’s history. Jamaica
has lost a true patriot who used his knowledge and expertise to further the nation’s
growth and development. Dr Hall will be dearly missed.

Dr. The Hon. Marshall Hall, O3,

James ‘Jimmy’ Moss-Solomon, CD,

Mr Moss-Solomon was an astute and passionate
entrepreneur, who served with distinction in the
development of Jamaica’s private sector. His
passion for service extended to diverse private
sector entities including the PSOJ where he
served as Vice President from August 2000 -
July 2001. During his tenure, he was forthright
in his views on advancing national growth.
Mr Moss-Solomon’s nationalistic outlook was
reflected through his strong advocacy on issues
surrounding education and social upliftment
while at the PSOJ. Jimmy will be missed!
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Interested in relocating or expanding your business? Looking for the perfect place to start off
your new and innovative business? Looking for space, comfort, and luxury with a touch of class?
Then look no further. The Whitter Village Centre is the perfect place for you!

This beautifully landscaped Village Square is the ideal place to shop, dine, meet friends, and chill,
which automatically makes it your perfect business location; only 7 minutes away from the
airport it’s oh so perfect for patrons and tenants alike.

Located at 1091 Morgan Road, Ironshore, Montego Bay, St. James, Jamaica W.I., the Whitter
Village Centre is a friendly location with safe, secure parking space and is wheelchair accessible.

Whitter Village - The Definition of Shopping!

Website: www.whittervillagemall.com
FB: Whitter Village

Instagram: @thewhittervillage
Contact : 876-953-2982

ler

The Definition of Slﬂ/,u/igg
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Ventry Foo, B.Sc., M.Sc., F.C.A.

Chartered Accountant,
6 Waterloo Way, Kingston 8, Jamaica, West Indies.
Telephone 755-3543, 755-3569, 765-0570, Fax 755-3968
Email: ventryfoo@vahoo.com - o

November 30, 2022

To the Members of

The Private Sector Organisation of Jamaica

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

I have audited the separate financial statements of The Private Sector Organisation of Jamaica set
out on pages 4 to 29, which comprise the separate statements of financial position as at December
31, 2021, comprehensive income, changes in funds, cash flows for the year then ended, notes,
comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In my opinion, the accompanying separate financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2021, and of its separate financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), and the Jamaican Companies Act.

Basis for Opinion

- I'conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of my report. I am independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.,

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRS and the Jamaican Companies Act and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or etror.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of The Private Sector Organisation of Jamaica

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The Board of Directors
is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance that the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, I exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

o Tdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required
to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of The Private Sector Oxganisation of Jamaica
e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that presents a true and fair view.

Emphasis on matter

e Prior year comparatives have been extracted from the records of other professionals, whose
report dated December 6, 2021, disclosed an unqualified report.

Report on additional matters as required by the Jamaican Companies Act

I have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief,
were necessary for the purposes of my audit. In my opinion, proper accounting records have been
maintained, so far as appears from my examination of those records, and the financial statements,
which are in agreement therewith, give the information required by the Jamaican Companies Act,
in the manner required.

NTRY FOO
Kingston, Jamaica
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The Private Sector Organisation of Jamaica
Statement of financial position
December 31, 2021
Notes 2021 2020
$°000 $°000
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 3 16,630 16,266
Investments 4 2,476 2.398
19,106 18.664
CURRENT ASSETS
Accounts receivable 5 9,408 4,659
Taxation recoverable 6,465 6,034
Due from related parties 6 4,044 5,729
Short-term investments 7 59,422 57,049
Cash and cash equivalents 8 15,728 30,324
95,067 103,795
TOTAL ASSETS 114,173 122,459
EQUITY
Fair value reserve 39) 39
Retained earnings 31,558 44,292
31,519 44,253
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred tax liability 9 1,867 1,867
Special project funds 10 44,573 51,819
Long-term loan 11 10 1,820
46,450 55,506
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Bank loan 12 7,217 -
Accounts payable 13 28,987 22,700
36,204 22,700
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 114,173 122,459

The financial statements on pages 4 to 29 were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on November 30, 2022,

and signed on its behalf by:

.......................................... Director I (CTPIICTIN b )1 (v 4

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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The Private Sector Organisation of Jamaica
Statement of comprehensive income
Year ended December 31, 2021
2021 2020
$’000 $°000
INCOME
Subscriptions and contributions 2(0) 55,734 46,332
Interest income 1,427 1,232
Other income 14 20,913 12,429
78,074 59,993
EXPENDITURE
Administrative expenses (Schedule 1) (93,127) (61,578)
OPERATING LOSS (15,053) (1,585)
Foreign exchange gain 2,319 1,089
Impairment losses on trade receivables, net - 4,330
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR BEFORE TAXATION (12,734) 3,834
TAXATION 17 - (2,663)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AFTER TAXATION (12,734) 1,171

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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The Private Sector Organisation of Jamaica 6
Statement of changes in equity
Year ended December 31, 2021
Fair value Retained
reserve earnings Total
$’000 $°000 $°000
Balances at December 31, 2019 (39) 43,121 43,082
Profit, being total comprehensive profit for the year - 1,171 1,171
Balances at December 31, 2020 (39) 44,292 44,253
Loss, being total comprehensive loss for the year - (12,734) (12,734)
Balances at December 31, 2021 {39) 31,558 31,519

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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The Private Sector Organisation of Jamaica 7
Statement of cash flows
Year ended December 31, 2021
2021 2020
$°000 $°000
CASH FLOWS (USED IN)/FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/Profit for the year (12,734) 1,171
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 2,662 2,174
Gain on foreign exchange 2,319) (1,089)
Interest income (1,427) (1,232)
Taxation - 2,663
(13,818) 3,687
Operating profit before charges in working capital:
Accounts receivable (4,749) 12,329
Taxation recoverable (431) -
Related party balance, net 1,685 5,080
Accounts payable 6,287 3,242
Cash from operations (11,026) 24,338
Taxation paid - (213)
Net cash (used)/provided by operating activities (11,026) 24,125
CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (3,026) (3,056)
Securities purchased under resale agreement (54) (13,604)
Investments, net (78) (88)
Interest received 1,427 1,232
Net cash used in investment activities (1,731 (15,516)
CASH FLOWS (USED IN)/FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Special project funds payable (7,246) 10,175
Long-term loan (1,810) (1,518)
Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities (9,056) 8,657
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (21,813) 17,266
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 30,324 13,058
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 8,511 30,324
Comprised of:
Cash balance:
Special projects fund 2,802 2,454
Others 12,926 27,870
15,728 30,324
Bank loan (7,217) -
8,511 30,324

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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The Private Sector Organisation of Jamaica 8
Notes to the financial statements
Year ended December 31, 2021

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Private Sector Organisation of Jamaica (“the Organisation”) is incorporated under the laws of
Jamaica. The Organisation is limited by guarantee and does not have share capital. The liability of each
member, in the event of a winding up, is limited to $2.

The principal activity of the Organisation is to promote, advocate and encourage the principles of a
competitive and productive private sector in Jamaica.

By order of the then relevant Minister of Production, Mining and Commerce, on the 9" December 1992,
the Organisation was authorised under Section 20 of the Companies Act to omit the word “Limited” from
its name.

The registered office of the Organisation is located at 39 Hope Road, Kingston 10.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance:

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, and comply with the
requirements of the Jamaican Companies Act.

New and amended standards that became effective during the year:

Certain new and amended standards and interpretations came into effect during the current financial year.
The Organization has assessed them and has adopted those which are relevant to its financial statements.

New and amended standards issued that are not yet effective:

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, certain new and amended standards have been
issued which are not yet effective for the current financial year and which the Organisation did not early
adopt. The Organisation has assessed the relevance of all such new standards, amendments and
interpretations with respect to its operation and has determined that the following may be relevant:

° Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements, will apply
retrospectively for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. The
amendments promote consistency in application and clarify the requirements on
determining if a liability is current or non-current.

Under existing IAS 1 requirements, companies classify a liability as current when
they do not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the end of the reporting period. As part of its amendments, the
requirement for a right to be unconditional has been removed and instead, now
requires that a right to defer settlement must have substance and exist at the end of
the reporting period.
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The Private Sector Organisation of Jamaica 9
Notes to the financial statements
Year ended December 31, 2021

2.  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a) Statement of compliance (continued):

New and amended standards issued that are not yet effective (continued):

° Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (continued)

A company classifies a liability as non-current if it has a right to defer settlement for at
least twelve months after the reporting period. It has now been clarified that a right to
defer exists only if the company complies with conditions specified in the loan agreement
at the end of the reporting period, even if the lender does not test compliance until a later
date.

With the amendments, convertible instruments may become current. In light of this, the
amendments clarify how a company classifies a liability that includes a counterparty
conversion option, which could be recognised as either equity or a liability separately
from the liability component under IAS 32. Generally, if a liability has any conversion
options that involve a transfer of the company’s own equity instruments, these would
affect its classification as current or non-current. It has now been clarified that a company
can ignore only those conversion options that are recognised as equity when classifying
liabilities as current or non-current.

The Organisation is assessing the impact that the new standards and amendments may have on
its future financial statements when they become effective.

(b) Basis of preparation

The financial statements are presented in Jamaica dollars ($), which is the functional currency of
the Organisation. All financial information presented in Jamaica dollars has been rounded to the
nearest thousand, except when otherwise indicated.

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis, modified for the inclusion of
investments measured at fair value.

(¢) Use of estimates and judgements:

The preparation of the financial statements to conform to IFRS requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities, contingent
assets and contingent liabilities at the reporting date and the income and expenses for the year
then ended. Actual amounts could differ from those estimates.
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The Private Sector Organisation of Jamaica 10
Notes to the financial statements
Year ended December 31, 2021

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c)  Use of estimates and judgements (continued):

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any
future periods affected. Judgements made by management in the application of IFRS that have a
significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustment in the next financial year are discussed below:

(i) Financial assets:
Judgements

For the purpose of these financial statements, judgement refers to the informed
identification and analysis of reasonable alternatives, considering all relevant facts and
circumstances, and the well-reasoned, objective and unbiased choice of the alternative that
is most consistent with the agreed principles set out in IFRS. The key relevant judgements
are as follows:

(1) Classification of financial assets:

The assessment of the business model within which assets are held and assessment of
whether the contractual terms of financial asset are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding requires management to make
certain judgements of its business operations.

(2) Impairment of financial assets:

Establishing the criteria for determining whether credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition, determining methodology for
incorporating forward-looking information into measurement of expected credit loss
(ECL) and selection and approval of models used to measure ECL require significant
judgement.

Key assumptions concerning the future of other sources of estimation uncertainty:

Allowance for impairment losses:

In determining amounts recorded for impairment losses of financial assets in the financial
statements, management makes assumptions in determining the inputs to be used in the ECL
measurement model, including incorporation of the forward- looking information.

Management also estimates the likely amount of cash flows recoverable on the financial assets in

determining loss given default. The use of assumptions make uncertainty inherent in such
estimates.
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The Private Sector Organisation of Jamaica 11
Notes to the financial statements
Year ended December 31, 2021

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Property, plant and equipment:

(i)  Property, plant and equipment are measured at historical cost or deemed cost, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any, Cost includes expenditures
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of replacing part
of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of
the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part
will flow to the Organisation and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of day-
to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in profit or loss.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the year
the asset is derecognised.

(i) Depreciation:
Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis at annual rates estimated to write down
the property, plant and equipment to their estimated residual values at the end of their

expected useful lives.

Annual depreciation rates are as follows:

Buildings 2.5%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10 - 20%
Computer equipment 20%

Land is not depreciated

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed annually.
(e} Investments:

Investments that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value
through profit or loss. A gain or loss on debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in “Interest income” using the effective
interest method.

(f)  Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term investments held
with financial institutions with maturity dates of less than three months.
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The Private Sector Organisation of Jamaica 12
Notes to the financial statements
Year ended December 31, 2021

2, BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(g) Accounts receivable:

Accounts receivable are measured at amortised cost, less impairment losses. An impairment loss
is recognised using the expected credit loss model for the entire lifetime of such financial assets
on initial recognition, and at each subsequent reporting period, even in the absence of a credit
event or if a loss has not yet been incurred, considering for their measurement past events and
current conditions, as well as reasonable and supportable forecasts affecting collectability [see
also note 2(n)].

Accounts receivable are measured at amortised cost, less impairment losses.

(h) Related parties:

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the entity that is preparing its financial
statements (referred to in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures as the “reporting entity”).

{a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to a reporting entity if
that person:

@ Has control or joint control over the reporting entity;
(i)  Has significant influence over the reporting entity; or

(iii)  Is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a
parent of the reporting entity.

(b) An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies:

i) The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i)  Oneentity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of
either the reporting entity or an entity related to the reporting entity. If the
reporting entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related
to the reporting entity.

(vi)  The entity is controlled, or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).
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The Private Sector Organisation of Jamaica 13
Notes to the financial statements
Year ended December 31, 2021

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(h) Related parties (continued):

(b) An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies
(continued):

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the

entity).

(viii) The entity or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key
management services to the Organisation.
A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between related
parties, regardless of whether a price is charged.

(i)  Accounts payable:

Accounts payable are measured at amortised cost.

(5} Employee benefits:

The Organisation has a defined contribution pension scheme for all permanent employees,
which is managed by an outside agency. The Organisation’s liability is limited to its
contributions which are accounted for on the accrual basis and charged to profit or loss in the
period to which they relate.

(k) Provisions:
A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Organisation has a
legal or constructive obligation as a resuit of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect is material, provisions
are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific
to the obligation.

(1)  Special project funds:

Funds designated for special projects are credited to a Special Project Funds account. Approved
project expenses are charged against these funds.

(m) Loans and borrowings:
After initial recognition, interest bearing loans are subsequently measured at amortised cost

using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective rate amortisation process.
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The Private Sector Organisation of Jamaica 14
Notes to the financial statements
Year ended December 31, 2021

2, BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(n) Impairment:
Financial assets

The Organisation recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECLs) on debt
instruments that are not measured at FVTPL and financial assets measured at amortised cost.

The Organisation measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the
following which are measured at 12-month ECLs:

- debtinvestment securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting
date; and

-~ other financial instruments (other than trade receivables) on which credit risk has not
increased significantly since their initial recognition.

The Organisation recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECLs) on debt
instruments that are not measured at FVTPL and financial assets measured at amortised cost.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Financial instruments for which a 12-
month ECL is recognised are referred to as ‘Stage 1 financial instruments’.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of
the financial instrument. Financial instruments for which a lifetime ECL is recognised but which
are not credit-impaired are referred to as ‘Stage 2 financial instruments’.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Organisation expects to receive).

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Organisation considers reasonable and
supportable information relevant and available without undue cost or effort.

This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the
Organisation’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward
looking information.
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The Private Sector Organisation of Jamaica 15
Notes to the financial statements
Year ended December 31, 2021

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(n) Impairment (continued):
Financial assets (continued)

The Organisation assumes that the credit risk on financial assets has increased significantly if more
than 90 days past due.

The Organisation recognises loss allowances for ECLs and considers a financial asset to be in default
when:
- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Organisation in full, without
recourse by the Organisation to action such as realising security if any is held; or
- the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Organisation assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised costs are
credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

- abreach of contract such as a default or past due event;

- it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) when there is
no reasonable expectation of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. This is the
case when the Organisation determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. This assessment is
carried out at the individual asset level. Recoveries of amounts previously written off are included in
‘impairment losses on financial instruments’ in the statement of profit or loss. Financial assets that are
written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Organisation’s
procedures for recovery of amounts due.
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The Private Sector Organisation of Jamaica 16
Notes to the financial statements
Year ended December 31, 2021

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(n) Impairment (continued):

Financial assets (continued)

Write-off (continued)

An allowance for impairment is established if there is objective evidence that the Organisation
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original contractual terms. The amount
of the allowance is the difference between the carrying amount and the recoverable amount.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Organisation’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting
date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, an
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated at that date. An impairment loss is recognised whenever
the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

The recoverable amount of the Organisation’s assets is the greater of their fair value, less cost to
sell, and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely
independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is reversed, if there has been a change in the estimate used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

(0) Revenue:

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. The
Organisation recognises revenue when it transfers control over service to a customer.

The nature and timing of the satisfaction of performance obligations in contracts with customers,
including significant payment terms, and the related revenue recognition policies are as follows:

Revenue from subscriptions and contributions is recognised at a point in time when the services
are provided and have been accepted by the customer. Invoices are issued according to contract
terms on a monthly basis.
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The Private Sector Organisation of Jamaica 17
Notes to the financial statements
Year ended December 31, 2021

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(p) Finance income:

Net finance income comprises interest income on funds invested, material bank charges and
foreign exchange gains and losses recognised in profit or loss.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss as it accrues, taking into account the yield on the
asset.

(@) Income tax:

Taxation on profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Taxation is
recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly to
equity, in which case it is recognised in other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The
amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted at the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences except to the extent
that the company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

(r) Foreign currencies:

Transactions in foreign currencies are converted at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date
of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, which are
stated at historical cost, are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the reporting date.
Foreign exchange differences arising from fluctuations in exchange rates are recognised in
profit or loss.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, all foreign currency gains and losses recognised
in profit or loss are treated as cash items and included in cash flows from operating or financing
activities along with movements in the principal balances.
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Notes to the financial statements
Year ended December 31, 2021

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(s) Financial instruments:

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to both a financial asset of one enterprise
and a financial liability or equity instrument of another enterprise. For the purpose of these
financial statements, financial assets have been determined to include accounts receivable, due
from related party, short-term investments, cash and cash equivalents and investment. Similarly,
financial liabilities include special project funds and accounts payable and loans.

(i)  Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Organisation becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing
component) or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at
FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade
receivable withouta significant financing component is initially measured at transaction
price.

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets

The financial assets that meet both of the following conditions and are not designated as
at fair value through profit or loss: a) are held within a business model whose objective is
to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows, and b) its contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, are classified as “held to collect” and measured at
amortised cost.

Amortised cost represents the net present value (“NPV”) of the consideration receivable
or payable as of the transaction date. This classification of financial assets comprises the
following captions:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Due from related parties
Investments

Due to their short-term nature, the Organisation initially recognises these assets at the
original invoices or transaction amount less expected credit losses.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(s) Financial instruments (continued):
(i1) Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

Subsegquent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as
described in the particular recognition methods disclosed in their individual policy
statements associated with each item.

Derecognition

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the asset have expired, or the Organisation has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement;
and either (a) the Organisation has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) the Organisation has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case of loans
and borrowings, plus directly attributable transaction costs.

The Organisation’s financial liabilities, which include accounts payable, special
project funds and loans are recognised initially at fair value,

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as
described in the particular recognition methods disclosed inthe individual policy
statements associated with each item.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

®

Financial instruments (continued):

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement
of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Determination of fair value:

Fair value amounts represent estimates of the arm’s length consideration that would be currently
agreed between knowledgeable, willing parties who are under nno compulsion to act and is best
evidenced by a quoted market price, if one exists. Some financial instruments lack an available
trading market. These instruments have been valued using present value or other valuation
techniques and the fair value shown may not necessarily be indicative of the amounts realisable
in an immediate settlement of the instruments.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land Leasehold Furniture
and Building  Improvements and equipment Total
$000 $'000 $°000 $000
Cost:
December 31,2019 1,949 5,034 38,308 45,291
Additions - - 3,056 3,056
December 31, 2020 1,949 5,034 41,364 48,347
Additions - - 3,026 3,026
December 31, 2021 1,949 5,034 44,390 51,373
Accumulated depreciation:
December 31, 2019 249 1,960 27,698 29,907
Charge for the year 39 126 2,009 2,174
December 31, 2020 288 2,086 29,707 32,081
Charge for the year 39 126 2,497 2,662
December 31, 2021 327 2,212 32,204 34,743
Net book value:
December 31, 2021 1,622 2,822 12,186 16,630

December 31, 2020 1,661 2,948 11,657 16.266
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4. INVESTMENT
2021 2020
$°000 $°000
Designated FVTPL:
Quoted stocks- Ciboney Group Limited 1 1
Unit Trust 2,475 2,397
2,476 2,398
5. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
2021 2020
$°000 $°000
Trade receivable 13,426 8,434
Allowance for impairment losses (a) (6,383) (5,295)
Sub-total 7,043 3,139
Prepayments - 885
Other receivables 2,365 635
9,408 4,659

Allowances for doubtful accounts are determined upon origination of the receivable based on a model
that calculates the expected credit loss (“ECL”) of the trade accounts receivable and are recognised over

their term.

(a) The movement in the provision for impairment of receivables was as follows:

Balance at beginning of the year
Additional/(Reversal) charge for the year

Balance at the end of the year

2021 2020
$°000 $°000
5,295 9,625
1,088 (4,330)
6,383 5,295

The Organisation's exposure to credit and currency risks and impairment losses relating to trade and other

receivables are disclosed in [note 17(a)].
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6. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS

The statement of financial position includes balances, arising in the ordinary course of business, with related
parties as follows:

2021 2020
$°000 $°000
Due from related parties:
Jamaica Securities Dealers Association 769 441
Jamaica Bankers Association 450 213
National Crime Prevention Fund 2.825 5,075
4.044 5,729

The amounts due from related parties are unsecured, do not attract interest and are not subject to any fixed
repayment terms. The balances are expected to be settled within twelve months of the reporting date.

7.  SHORT-TERM INVESTMENT

2021 2020

$7000 $°000

Short-term investment 59,456 57,083
Allowance for impairment losses (34) (34)

59,422 57,049
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8. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents include amounts held for special projects of $2,801,307, (2020: $2,454,000).
9.  DEFERRED TAXATION
The net deferred tax liability is attributable to the following:
Recognised in Recognised in
2019 profit or loss 2020  profit or loss 2021
$°000 $°000 $°000 $7000 $°000
(note 17) (note 17)
Tax losses 1,215 (1,215) - - -
Unrealized foreign exchange gain - (34) (34) - (34)
Accounts receivable 512 (495) 17 - 17
Accounts payable 242 (137) 105 - 105
Property, plant and equipment (1,969) 14 (1,955) - (1,955)
- (1,867) (1,867) - (1,867)
10.  SPECIAL PROJECT FUNDS
2021 2020
$°000 $°000
The European Union Banana Support Programme (a) 2,141 2,141
National Business Model Competition (b) 1,104 389
Mayer Matalon Biography (c) 24 24
True Vision Fund (d) 20 20
Public Sector Committees {(e) 24,426 24,426
Jamaica Accountability Meter Portal ® 20,359 23,818
Voucher for Technical Assistance Programme (g) 10 655
Connect a Child Jamaica Initiative (h) 934 1,000
Children’s Help Line (i) (170) (650)
Private Sector Vaccine Initiative )] (4,698) -
Tree planting initiative & 423 -
44,573 51,819
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10.

SPECIAL PROJECT FUNDS (CONTINUED)

(@)

(b)

©

(d)

(©

®

(8)

On September 20, 2011, the Organisation signed an agreement with the Office of the European
Union Banana Support Programme for a project titled: St. James Youth Training and Job
Placement Project. The objective of the project is to train and certify 200 persons between the
ages of 18 to 30 years old from rural communities in South St. James in ICT skills to work with
call centre operations; specifically with Global Gateway Solutions in Montego Bay. The
approved budget is €498,794 of which 60.15% is financed by the European Union; 30.7%
financed by the Government of Jamaica through the Constituency Development Fund (CDF);
and 9.15% by Global Gateway Solutions. The project was for a period of 15 months and should
have been completed in December 2012. Given the delays in starting the project, the European
Union approved an extension of the project closure to March 18,2013 to enable the achievement
of the project's objectives. The project has not been officially signed off by the European Union
as they are in the process of completing their audit of the project. When this is completed, monies
remaining will be returned and the bank accounts closed.

On January 2014, the University of Technology Jamaica, (UTECH), through the Joan Duncan
School of Entrepreneurship, Ethics and Leadership (JDSEEL), the University of the West Indies
Mona School of Business and Management (MSBM and Northern Caribbean University
(NCU), embarked upon a noble project to promote entrepreneurship through a National Business
Model Competition (NBMC). The winner of the competition will be entered in the International
Business Model Competition (IBMC) in Utah, USA. The Project was completed during the
year.

The Mayer Matalon Biography Fund represents funds from the Organisation member
companies donated towards doing a biography in remembrance of the late Mayer Matalon.

The True Vision Fund represents Funds from member companies of the Organisation for a
television program focusing on the International Monetary Fund programime in Jamaica. The
project was scheduled to be aired in 2015, however, it has been delayed due to legal proceedings
against the producer of the programme.

Public Sector Committees fund represents funds provided by private sector companies for
which the Organisation is the custodian. The money will be used to fund the committees which
were established by the government. This agreement is in effect for three (3) years.

During the year on June 2020, the PSOJ signed an agreement with the Delegation of the
European Union (EU) for a project titled: The Jamaica Accountability Meter Portal (JAMP)
Project for a period of 36 months. The objective of the project is to "Strengthen Public
Stewardship and Accountability in Government". The project seeks to improve the
longstanding, festering governance and public accountability problem, through the
mainstreaming of a national parliamentary tool, that focuses on policies and systems related to
public financial management and anti-corruption initiatives.

Voucher for Technical Assistance Programme (VTA Project), funded by the Development Bank
of Jamaica (DBJ), provides assistance to MSMEs in strengthening their managerial and
administrative abilities to improve credit worthiness. The Organisation has been contracted as
project managers and funds in the account reflect the amounts to be paid for this service.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

SPECIAL PROJECT FUNDS (CONTINUED)

(h) This is a Private Sector/GOJ Partnership to acquire mobile devices (tablets and laptops) for children to
connect remotely during the COVID-19 pandemic. A donation was made for this initiative.

() This is a Private Sector/OCA/UNICEF Partnership to establish a 24-hour children’s hotline. A deposit

payment was made towards the initial cost of the initiative.

(i) The Private Sector Vaccine Initiative is a collaborative project between The Ministry of Health and

Wellness. The Jamaica Manufacturers and Exporters Association, The Jamaica Chamber of Commerce,

and The Private Sector Organization of Jamaica. Launched in 2021, the Private Sector Vaccine
Initiative is a mechanism to support Jamaica's COVID-19 vaccination efforts. The Private Sector
Organization of Jamaica contributes funding to facilitate the procurement of COVID-19 vaccines.

LONG-TERM LOAN

JMMB Bank (Jamaica) Limited
Less: Current portion

2021
$°000

B . S

2020
$’000
1,820

1,820

The loan is repayable in monthly instalments by $148,213 with interest rate of 9.85% per annum.

The loan is secured on Solar Generating Equipment valued at $7,000,000.

BANK LOAN

Bank loan arises from an unsecured line of credit provided by Jamaica Money Market

Brokers for financing of the Private Sector Vaccination Initiative.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Trade payables (i)
Accruals

Deferred income

OTHER INCOME

Annual Economic Forum
Other

Publications

Rental

Seminars

VTA Programme Project

2021
$°000
2,523
8.448

10,971
18,016
28,987

2021
$°000

1,341
9,428
3,780

927
2,237
3.200

20913

2020
$7000
2,847
2,755

5,602
17,098
22,700

2020
$7000

833
5,378
1,192
1,508
1,228

-2.290

12,42
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15.  STAFF COST

Staff costs comprise the following:

2021 2020

$°000 $°000
Wages, salaries and statutory deductions 53,325 22,310
Pension costs 1,584 1,030
Other staff costs 2,314 2.232
57,223 25,572

16.  PENSION SCHEME

The Organisation operates a defined contribution pension scheme for all employees who have satisfied certain
minimum service requirements. The scheme is administered by Guardian Life Limited. During the year the
Organisation’s contribution totalled $1,584,191, (2020: $1,029,822).

17.  TAXATION

Taxation is based on the profit/(loss) for the year adjusted for income tax purposes and comprises:

2021 2020

$°000 $°000
Current tax expense: - 796
Income Tax - -
Deferred Tax - 1,867
- 2,663

Tax loss of $14,992,090 is available for set off against future taxable profits.
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18.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Exposure to various types of financial instrument risks arises in the ordinary course of the company’s
business. The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of
the company’s risk management framework. The company’s risk management policies are
established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the company, to set appropriate risk limits and
controls, and to monitor risk and adherence to limits. Risk management policies are reviewed on a
regular basis and reflect changes in market conditions and the company’s activities.

(a) Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation
and cause the other party to incur a financial loss.

At statement of financial position’s date, there was no significant concentration of credit risk and
maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset.

(b) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of  changes
in market price, whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual
security or its issuer, or factors affecting all securities traded in the market. The company has
no significant exposure to market risk as financial instruments subject to this risk are not material.

(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in market interest rates.

Bank overdrafts are subjected to interest rates which may be varied with appropriate
notice by the lender.

Interest rate sensitivity

There would be no material impact on operating results as financial assets and liabilities
are contracted for short term duration at fixed interest rates.
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18.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(b) Market risk (continued)
(i) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument will fluctuate
due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

{c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk, also referred to as funding risk, is the risk that the company will encounter

difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial instruments.

Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sell a financial asset quickly at, or close to, its fair
value. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities, and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities.
The company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate amounts of liquid financial assets of
appropriate terms and currencies, by pursuing prompt payment practices and by putting in place
appropriate stand-by credit arrangements.

(d) Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a variety of causes associated with
the Organisation's processes, personnel, technology and external factors, other than financial risks,
such as generally accepted standards of corporate behavior. The Organisation manages operational
risk so as to avoid financial loss and damage to its reputation.

(e) Capital management
The company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as

a going concern, to provide returns to its stakeholders, and maintain a strong capital base to
to support the development of its business.
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19.

IMPACT OF THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC

The World Health Organisation declared the novel Coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak a
pandemic on March 11, 2020 due to its rapid spread across the globe. Jamaica has been affected
by the outbreak which resulted in the Government of Jamaica declaring Jamaica a disaster area
on March 13, 2020. This has disrupted the Ogranisation’s activities, caused a downturn in the
economy and significantly increased economic uncertainty. The Organisation’s business
activities have been impacted by significant business interruption arising from the current
economigc strains.

The Organisation has played a key role throughout the pandemic by channeling supportfrom the
private sector companies and other donors to the Government of Jamaica in the form of cash
grants for funding of COVID-19 related projects and promotional activities geared at fighting the
spread of the COVID-19 virus.

The Organisation was able to maintain it membership subscription level and have also obtained
additional members.

However, the Organisation has faced some challenges due to the restrictions implemented as a
result of the virus as it had to change the format of some events to an online base platform.

The Organisation expects that the COVID-19 pandemic will continue to have some adverse
effects on its financial performance. Management continues to monitor the effects of the
development arising from the pandemic.
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2021 2020
$°000 $°000
INCOME
Subscriptions and contributions 55,734 46,332
Interest income 1,427 1,232
Other income 20913 12,429
TOTAL INCOME 78.074 59.993
EXPENDITURE
Advertising 1,449 1,083
Auditors’ remuneration 1,179 1,050
Bad debt 1,088 -
Bank charges 545 490
Depreciation 2,662 2,174
Donations and subscriptions 2,547 1,748
General consumption tax irrecoverable 4,828 -
General 1,795 2,020
Insurance 571 565
Meetings and luncheons 695 857
Miscellaneous 2 1,346
Professional services 1,803 8,105
Property tax 633 606
Publications 3,020 1,204
Repairs and maintenance 3,594 3,922
Security 1,610 1,999
Seminars 2,931 3,188
Staff costs 57,223 25,572
Stationery 58 842
Travelling and entertainment 6 73
Utilities 4,888 4,734
TOTAL EXPENSES 93,127 61.578
NET LOSS (15,053) (1,585)



The Private Sector Organisation of Jamaica
Income tax computation

Year ended December 31, 2021

TRN #000199737-0000

I

Net loss per financial statements

Add : Bad debt, general provision
Add : Depreciation

Less : Capital Allowances
Initial
Annual

Tax loss from prior year

Adjusted tax losses carried forward

2021

$000
(12,734)

1,088

2,662 3,749

(8,985)

(548)
(2,210)
(11,743)

(3,250)

(14,993)
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